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DESCRIPTICH gi” DMARY

St. Giles s - twO and a half story, five bay long, frame Federal period farmhouse with
tweptieth o=n-.ory hyphen and wing, located one half mile southwest of Eebron, in Wiccrico
Connty, v1l:.2d. The original part of the hcuse is {five bays wide and two bays deep,
reasuring - 0'IiT % 40'3". The entire structure is ccvered with beaded weatherboard, which
is generall}"inginal' A twentieth century porch occupies the central bay of the princirzl
(south) facx -. 1Its design is in keeping with the period of the building. The entry ras

a six panel C.-oT with four pane transom above, with beaded trim and ogee back band.
Flanking to2 “Ioor and porch are two windows on cach side with 9/6 sash, original louv 4
blinds znd thz: same trim as on the door. On the second story all five bays have €/6 szsh
windows wi—n _.ouvered blinds, but the blinds are later replacements. The cornics is a
typical box c-.rnice of the period with ogee crown and cove bed moldings. Three twentietih
century dorme:rTs pierce the cable roof, which is covered with hand split shakes. The czst
gable has =wo windows on each story flanking the outside brick chimney. The third story
windows arz criginal and have 4/2 sash. Original windows on the first and second stories
remain on —nhe west ¢gable, north of the outside chimney. The one and a half story hyphen
zbuts the ;abfe, flush with the north side of the chirney. Like the older part of the
house, the tr..-2e-bay hyrhen and two-bay wing are built on brick foundation and are covered
,~~h beadeZ s iing. The trim has been carefully copied from the original. With its ridge
_ at ric-t 2 ngles to the remainder of the house, the wing is two bays wide and two and
a half stcrie= tall. The interior is slightly assymetrical, with the living room being
slightly 1zrg=r than the library. Centered on the east wall, the fireplace with large
finely det=z=il=4 Federal mantel, dominates the living room. It is flanked by the two
windows of th= gable. The north and south walls are identical, with two windows sym-
metrically plzced on the wall. Original yellow pine floors have remained intact, as
have baseboar<s, chair rail, cornice and all of the window and door trim.
throughout hea -2 six recessed panels with applied molding. The open string stair ascends
on the wect c.3e of the hall adjacent to the library. The library is the smaller of the
two princigal I0oms. with the exception of fenestration and a smaller size mantel, the
trim is tre c-:me as the living room. West of the library, down two steps, is the dining
room, addecd &cound 1940. The trim in this room is stock trim for the period. One step
lower is the ritchen wing. Most of the first story of the wing was remodeled in 1978.
Feturning to +he old part of the house, on the second story, above the living room, the
master bedrowin retains all original flooring and trim, although simpler than below.
library chamber OT cuest bedroom is almost identical to the master bedroom. 2Also on the
property are several outbuildings, including a well house and quarter of undetermined cate.
The wood house, tenant house, barn, cgarage, and pool house all appear to have t=en con-
structed or rcrodeled in the 20th century. The landscaped grounds include a garden which
is reputed to retain its original early nineteenth century layout.

ot}
It
]

The doors

The

GENERAL DESCR1PTION B

St. Giles is a two and a half story, five bay long, frame Federal period farmhouse with
-entieth ceniury hyphen and wing. Its principal facade looks southeast tcoward Maryland
.oute 347, o2 half mile southwest of Hebron.

SEE CONTINUS 10N SHEET No. 1
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The oldest part of the house is five bays long and two bays édeep, measuring 20'3" x 20'3".
The entire structure is covered with beaded weatherboard which is original, except “or a
few beards around the foundation. Its exposure varies by %", but is generally 4i".

3 twentieth century porch occupies the central bay of the house. Its design is in heop':
with the period of the building. The entry is a simple corposition of a six panel &oor
with four pane transom above, all trirmmed neatly with beaded trim and ogee back kzni.

Flanking the door and porch are two windows on each side with 9/6 sash, original louvzred
blinds and the same trim as on the side door. The shutter dogs are also original.

On the second story all five bays have 6/6 sash windows with louvered blinds, but the
blinds are later replaceiments and there are no shutter dogs.

The cornice 1is a typical box cornice of the day with ogee crown and cove bed moldings.
Three twentieth century dormers pierce the roof. They have 3/3 sash and gable roofs.
The roof is covered with hand split shakes.

1e east gable has two windows on each story flanking the outside brick chimney. The
tter is built of common bond and rises from the base to the second story fireplace in

a straight shaft, where it tapers to a smaller shaft, there continuing to a plain cap

about 4' zbove the apex of the roof. The third story windows are original and have 4/2

(f

a

i

On the north side of the main house the fenestration is irregular, having three symmatrica
bays on the second story, but four on the first, the latter to achieve symmetry in the
living room. Like the south side, there is also a porch, but this one is enclosed and is
lighted by several casement windows. This structure is also twentieth century. No dori -r¢
wzre added to this side of the roof.

Original windows on the first and second stories remain on the west gable, north of the
outside chimney. Both third floor windows remzin. The one znd a half story hyphen abuts
the cable, flush with the north side of the chimney zand protrudes around 3%' in the front.

Like the older part of the house, the hyphen and wing are built on brick foundation
covered with beaded siding. The trim has been carefully copied from the original.
hyphen's south facade has three bays on the first story and two dormers above. A shalico
cshed roof porch covers the entry on the east side of the facade. The windows have no
blinds and 6/6 sash.

A
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with its ridge set at right angles to the remainder of the house, the wing is two bz
wide and two and a half stories tall. A bay window on the first story is located adiz .nt
to the hyphen. 2 small 8/8 sash window is located above the kitchen sink. 1In the in::d
floor of the gable is a plain Palladian-style window. The west side of the wing is tl.:.e
Rays long with a central door protected by a shed roof porch. The steps descend freom

o>th sides with wrought iron balustrade. Flanking the porch are two arbors with wistsria
¢rowing thareon. A wide dormer window is located in the center of the roof. & brick
chirney pilerces the apex of the roof about 7' in from the north gable.

The r.orth side of the wing has irregular fenestration, indicating the varied arranjzsront

SZE CONTINUATION SHEET No. 2
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of the irnterior. What was conce a small back porch on the north side of the hyphen has
b2en subseguently enclosed. This is the only rart of the house covered with unkezde

siding.

Q

Zs with most houses of this plzn, the interior 1s slightly asy :
being slightly larger than the other rocm. 2&s mantioned in the exterior description zl.ov
the north facade has an asymrstrical arrancgement of windows for the purpose of crezting
symmetry within the living room. Centered on the east wall, the fireplace with large
finely detailed Federal mantel, dominates the room. It is flanked by the two windcws of
the gable. The north and south walls are identical, with two windows symmetrically
on the wall. The only asymmetrical element of the living room is the door which is :
close to the south side of the house. Original yellow pine floors have remained intact,
as have baseboards, chair rail, cornice and all of the window and door trim. The kase-
board has two surfaces with molding on top. The same pattern exists at the base of the
pilasters on the fireplace. The chair rail also has two plain surfaces with molded top
rail, similar to the door and window trim. The cornice is unusually delicate in com—
position, consisting of ogee cove and dentil moldings. The mantel has a molding arcund
the fireplace opzning and is flanked by pilasters with recessed panels. Capital nolding
xtends across the entire piece. €Smaller plinths continue to the mantel shelf. A third
central panel gives definition to the composition. The cove molding beneath the shelf is
similar to the exterior bed molding. All plaster is original in this room.

-etrical, with the 1livi:

The doors throughout have six recessed panels with applied molding. BAll doors are hung
on original cast iron butt hinges. ILocks, except one early iron box lock on the library
door and an eighteenth century brass one on the front door, date from the remodeling of
c. 1240.

The copen string stair ascends on the west side of the hall adjacent to the library. 7ts
newels are slender, turned, colwrns, with slicht entesis. The balusters are delicate
rectangular pieces. The nearly round handrail is secured to the top of the newels. &t
the ends of the steps are applied ogeval frets similar to a reversed gquestion mark. The
scandrell 1is plastered. Beneath the stair is a recent lavatory. 211 trim in the hall
is the szme as the living room.

The library is the smaller of the two principal rooms. With the exception of fenestration
and a smaller size mantel, the trim is the same as the living room. Two windows are
situated on the south wall and one on the north. Flanking the fireplace are an original &
on the south, bearing early iron box lock, and a window to the north. The ceiling of this
room was renewed in 1978,
Wwest of the library, down two steps, is the dining room, added around 1940. The trim in
this room is stock trim for the period and included baseboard, chair rail and cornice.
—~The latter has approached the feeling of the original cornice in the main house, but has
-0t achieved the delicacy.

Cne step lower is the kitchen wing. Most of the first story of the wing was remodeled in
1978 to m=zet the needs of the family. It is composed of kitchen and breakfast room, with

utility, furrnzce, back stair znd lavatory.

CEE CONTINUATICON SHEET XKo. 3
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Rezturning to the o0ld part of the house, on the second story, above the living room, is a
~:ster bsdroom. This room retains all coriginal flooring and trim, although simpler than
that below. The basebozrd is a plain becaded board. The chair rail is composed of a
beaded facia with molded upper rail. The trim is very similar to the chair rail. Tocated
off-center in the east wall, the fireplace dominates the room. In this instance the
molding surrounds the fireplace and three plinths rise between the molding and the qknlf
with small cove molding beneath the shelf. Two twentieth century additions are a cicse

in the northwest corner and a crown molding around the ceiling--both apparently added 1
the 1940 renovation. All plaster is original.

:3

An unusual arrangement exists in the hall. Here, the enclosed stair to the attic ascends

in a winder from the stair landing, taking about 3' from the east room. Beneath the stair
is a small closet. At the head of the stair is an original small room, now a bath. Like

the other rooms in the house, this room retains original flooring. The hall has the same

original cornice as the room below, but plainer baseboard and trim.

The library cheamber or guest bedroom is almost identical to the master bedroom. Kowever,
the mzntel has one less kand of molding around the fireplace. There is crown molding at
the 111ng, a closet in the northwest corner ard a door to the wing, all of which are
140 additions to the room.

The attic or third floor is divided into two rooms flanking the stair hall. The stair
ascends between two unusual balustrades, the posts of which are fastened to the floor and
the ceiling. It retains original paint. The east wall is roughly plastered, the wast

wall is weatherboard. The east room was apparently rough plastered originally and retains
some of the plaster. Some has been replaced. The west room was originally unfinished, Lut
is now beaverboarded. The heating/cooling eguipment for the second floor is located hzre.

In the garden behind the hyphen stands a small frame well house, 9'4" x 7'2", with a shallow
hip roof. It is sheathed in bzaded siding like the house and has a tattsn door and a =211
szsh on each side. According to Forman, the building replaces an earlier lattice well
house.

ted northwest of the kitchen wing is a one story, two car carage, 22'3" x 30'3". Two
o head doors are located on the east gable. A window and door pierce the south wall.
A shallow leanto shed is built out the west side of the garage. Only the east side of

the building is covered with beazded siding, the remainder with unbeaded; the ched with
vertical siding.

Between the garage and quarter is situated a small meathouse, 13'3" x 10'1", reputed to
b2 the one which formerly stood behind the house. From the evidence within, the frame
structure appears to have been heavily reconstructed in the twentieth century. It is
covered with a combination of vertical boards and weatherboard. It apparently was a
sirple shed originally. It stands on block piers.

r.g northward, there is a small frame quarter, 12'0" x 9'9". There is no founda-

wing beneath the shingled walls. The batten door entrance is centerzd on the
zst gztle. An exterior brick chirney is located on the west cable. Cne windsw with
6/6 szch is centered on the south side of the building. The interior is conpletely
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sheathed with be
i

acded shiplap, rmost of which is original. For such a small room, it has a
fairly larce firepla

ce. The hearth is guite wide.

Within three feet of the guarter is another small outbuilding, called by Forman, the
nzcessary &nd woodhcouse". It faces east and has two doors and a window. It, like its
original neichbor, is cecvered with shingles. A small brick flue is located on the north
gable. The framing of this structure is twentieth century.

Also on the same side of the land, but away from the former buildings is a frame tenzant
house on brick piers, three bays long and two bays deep, with a one bay leanto on the
north side. The building is covered with asbestos siding and has 6/6 sash windows, exc=wpt
for the attic which has 2/2 sash and the west which have original 2/2 sash. It dazzes {from
c. 1900, and its plan is similar to Indian Cove, Church Creek, Dorchester County.

Directly north of the residence is the frame barn, covered with German siding. On the
east side, the framing is composed of hewn studs 4 x 8 with newer sawn 2 x 6 between--
16" on center. The hewn members appear to have bzen re-used joists. Otherwise the
_Structure appears to date from c. 1200. The south portion stands on an old brick

undation, but the stable section to the north is on a newer brick foundation. The
Loriner part of the barn contains storace sheds on its west side and grain area above.
The latter part contains ten stalls with wide passage in the center. On the west side
of the barn is a small milkhouse and on the east side is a machine shed.

To the east of the house and barn stands a small frame structure composed of a two story
section with shed on its north side. The south facade has a door and window on the first
story with one 2/2 sash window above. Both gables have windows on both stories, 6/6 sash
on the first story and 4/4 sash on the second. It is sheathed with plain weatherboa:rd.
The 'A' roof is covered with wood shingles. The interior has been remodeled for usz =

a pool house.

C' )
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Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

~_prehistorie . archeology-prehistoric . community planning ___landscape archilecture ___icligion

™ _1400-1499 .. _archeology-historic ____conservalion . law ..__sciznce

.1500-1599 ____agriculture ___. economics _.—literature —— sculpture

__1600-1699 _X architecture _ education —__military ——_ social/

. _1702-17%9 __art ____engincering —____music humanitarian

_X_1800-1889 ____commerce ____exploration'settiement ___ philosophy ___ thcater

1900~ —__ communicatlions _ __industry —__ politics'government transportation
___invention ____cther (spzcity)

Specific dates circa 1811-1818 guilder Architect uUnwEnown

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) Zpplicable Criterion: C
SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY

St. Giles achieves significance for its architecture, as a well-preserved Eastern Shore
faimhouse of the Federal period. Few early nineteenth century buildings remain in
Wicomico County; among these, St. Giles stands out for the quality of its workmancship
and the extent of its preservation. Its interior detailing remains largely intact, and
displays a cagree of sophistication which is unusual in such a rural context. Moreover,
its five-bay width renders St. Giles unusuval in the context of Wiceomico County's sur-
viving early nineteenth century dwellings, most of which are only three bays wide.

St. Giles' original fabric was carefully protected in the c. 1940 alteration; the
additions to the house made at that time are of interest in their illustration of

the Colonial esthetic of the Williamsburg era.

ﬁ
>TORY AND SUPPORT

Stephens Harris, a planter, purchased a 272-acre tract, including the land on which
St. Giles is located in 1811, and probably built the house shortly thereafter. Upon
his death in 1814, the property devised to his son, John E. Harris, who continued to
farm the land and acquired additional acreage. After John E. died in 1879, the St. Giles
property was purchased at the trustees' sale by William Howard, who was high sheriff of
Wicomico County. William Howard's son, Frank, then resided at St. Giles, which he
renzmed "Cedar Lawn', &nd boucht the farm from his father in 1894. Frank's daughter,
Hilda, married CGeorge Clifton Bounds, the son of Gezorge A. Bounds, whose lurber rianu-
facturing and canning plant were among the earliest industries in Hebron, a town which
sprang into existence with the coming of the railrcad west from Salisbury in 1890.
Lfter her father's d=zath in 1936, Hilda moved back to St. Giles, and it was during

her occupancy that the house was expznded. Hilda died in 1965, after which the hcuse
passed to George E. and Mary K. Burnett, who sold it to William S. and Helen Tilghman
Gordon in 1974. 1In 1979 the present cowners acguired the house.
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VEREAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

ZBeginning at ithe intersecition of the Northwesterly side
of State Route 347 and the Northeasterly side of County Road
433 proceed North 46 degrees 08 minutes West a distan?e of
788.48 feet; then continuing with the Northeasterly side of
County Road 433 North 46 degrees 36 minutes West a distance
of 1391.72 feet. Then proceed North 67 degrees 37 minutes
East a distance of 1040 feet along the Southerly side of lands
belonging to Howard S. Culver; then, as a line of convenience,
continue North 67 degrees 37 minutes East 2long the Southerly
side of other Dunahoo lands approximately 1600 feet to the
Yesterly side of County Road 430. Then proceed South 25
degrees 15 minutes East along the VWesterly side ?f County Road
430 approximately 700 feet to the Northeast corner of the
property of the Wicomico County Board of Education, then
South 60 degrees 01 minutes West 514.10 feet and South 25
ees 48 minutes East 943.50 feet along the property of the

omico County Board of Education to the Northwesterly side
of State Route 347. Then proceed along the Northwesterly side
of State Route 247 South 52 degrees 06 minutes West 1314.4

feet to the point of begimning, containing 80 acres of land.
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BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundaries are drawn to utilize certzin lines of convenience that form
either strong visuazl and physical borders and/or are easily understood. The
visual and physical borders are forwed by three public rcads (Maryland Route
347 znd County Roads 433 and 430) and the property lires for a parcel to the
southeast of the house which is owned by the Wicomico County Board of Education.
This line is clearly evident with the change of landscape from the St. Giles
property to the Board of Education land. The boundary northwesterly from the
house, the "back" border, consists of an existing property line with a line
projected easterly from it to merge with the border formed by County Road 430.
The terrain of the land around St. Giles is flat with the house clearly visible
frem the roadways. The landscaping arcund the heouse is such that the borders
for nomination, particularly the rcacds and the school property, are easily

recognized.
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